
CITY COUNCIL BUSINESS MEETING AGENDA 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, AL 

                                                                        OCTOBER 15, 2012 

                                                                                  6:30 P.M.                                                                           

 

 1.  CALL TO ORDER 

 2.  ROLL CALL/INVOCATION / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE       

 

3.  APPROVE MINUTES:     Council meeting minutes / October 1, 2012   

 

PRESENTATION:      Freedom Shrine Documents / Hanging in Lobby / The Exchange Club                                                
                                                   

4. REPORT STANDING COMMITTEES: 
    A.  FINANCE COMMITTEE / Boulware 

          Review minutes / October 8
th

  

1.) Ordinances: 

a.) Appropriation of Funds: Wireless Services & Fiber: Phase II – Recreation/Civic Center /  

     Ordinance 2012-59 
                b.)  Appropriation of Funds: Police Vehicles / Ordinance 2012-60 

                 

2.)  Resolutions: 

a.) Bid Award: 2012-R-Fiber Installation and Service / JMF Solutions / Resolution 2012-79  

                b.) Bid Award: 2012-S-Lake Forest Road Improvements, Phase II / Asphalt Services, Inc. / 

                     Resolution 2012-80 

                c.)  Investment Account Manager & Investment 2012 Construction Fund / Resolution 2012-81     

                d.)  Declare City Property Surplus / Resolution 2012-82 

          

3.)  Financial Reports: 

 Treasurers Report / September 30, 2012 

 Sales and Use Tax Collections / August 31, 2012 

 Lodging Tax Collections / August 31, 2012 

 Summary: Volunteer Firefighter Reimbursements / September 30, 2012 

 

    B.  BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE -   Lake     

    C.  PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE –   Boulware  

    D.  CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE  -   Reese  

          Review minutes / October 10
th

  

 

    E.  PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE / SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY  -  Conaway   

          Review minutes / September 17
th

     

 

5. REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS:  

    A.  Board of Zoning Adjustments – Jones   

          Review minutes / August 2
nd

  

          Review Report for October 4
th

 Meeting 

          

     

 

 

 

 
1



 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA                            OCTOBER 15, 2012                                  PAGE   2 

 

          

B.  Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Barnette             

    C.  Industrial Development Board –   Conaway           

    D.  Library Board – Lake   

  E.  Planning Commission – Barnette    

          Review minutes / July 26
th

  

a.) Set a Public Hearing Date for November 19, 2012 to consider Amendments to the Land Use and   

                 Development Ordinance: 

                 1.)   Article 8 / Definition of Terms / Prefabricated / Accessory Structures, Prefabricated 

2.) Article 9, Section 12 (g)  / Accessory Structures 

 

F.  Recreation Board – Reese     

    G.  Utility Board - Scott   

 

 

6.  REPORTS OF OFFICERS: 

     A.  Mayor’s Report  
            a.)  Parade Permit / American Foundation of Suicide Prevention “Out of Darkness” / 5K & 1 Mile Fun  

                  Run / October 21, 2012             

 

     B.  City Attorney’s Report  

C. Department Head Comments    

 

 

7. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:  

 

 

8. RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 

     

RESOLUTIONS: 

 

a.)    Vacation of Easement(s) / J.R. & Mellissa Allstun 

          Lots 10 & 102, Lake Forest Subdivision, Unit 14. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2012-76 

 

b.)    Acceptance of Property / W. Andrew Johnson &  

         Michael Kipping. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2012-77 

 

c.)    Prepaid Travel / David Cohen. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2012-78 

 

d.)    Bid Award: Fiber Installation & Service / JMF Solutions. . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2012-79 

 

e.)    Bid Award: Lake Forest Road Improvements, Phase II / 

        Asphalt Services, Inc. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2012-80 

 

f.)    Investment Account Manager & Investment 2012 Construction 

        Fund. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2012-81 

 

g.)    Declaring Certain Property Surplus. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2012-82 

 

 2



  

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA                            OCTOBER 15, 2012                                  PAGE   3 

 

 

 

  ORDINANCES: 

 

 

       1
ST

 READ 
a.)   Appropriation of Funds:  Wireless Service / Internal City  

        Network & Fiber Service / Civic Center / Recreation Center . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2012-59      
 

b.)   Appropriation of Funds:  Police Vehicle Replacement. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2012-60     

 

c.)    Regulating the Use of Alcoholic Beverages in Public Places 

        the City of Daphne. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2012-61 

 

d.)    Regulating Personal Use of Social Media by Employees. . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2012-62 

 

9. COUNCIL COMMENTS                   

10.  ADJOURN 

3



CITY OF DAPHNE 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 

ROLL CALL 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL:                                         CALL  VOTES   
 

COUNCILWOMAN CONAWAY               PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILWOMAN BARNETTE    PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN LAKE   PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN REESE   PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN SCOTT   PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCIMAN BOULWARE     PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN PALUMBO   PRESENT       ABSENT         

    

MAYOR 

 

MAYOR YELDING    PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

CITY CLERK: 

 

DAVID L. COHEN                 PRESENT___    ABSENT___ 

 

CITY ATTORNEY: 
 

CITY ATTORNEY JAY ROSS  PRESENT       ABSENT    

 

 

MINUTE NOTES: 

 

 

                                                             

 

                                                             

 

                                                             

 

                                                             

 

4



                                                             

 

                                                             

 

                                                             

 

 

      CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

MINUTES 

 

NOTES: 

 

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                   

 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                                                             

5



1. CALL TO ORDER 
Council President Barnette called the meeting to order at 6:35 p.m. 
 
2. ROLL CALL/INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
The invocation was given by Councilwoman Conaway. 
 
COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:  Tommie Conaway; Cathy Barnette; John Lake; Kelly 
Reese; Ron Scott; Derek Boulware; August Palumbo. 
 
ALSO PRESENT:  Mayor Yelding; David Cohen, City Clerk; Rebecca Hayes, Assistant City 
Clerk;  Jay Ross, City Attorney; James White, Fire Chief; Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center 
Director; Tonja Young, Library Director; David McKelroy, Recreation Director; Richard 
Johnson, Public Works Director; Kim Briley, Finance Director; Richard Merchant, Building 
Official; Vickie Hinman, Human Resources Director; Adrienne Jones, Planning Director; 
Christine Ciancetta, Deputy Finance Director; Ashley Campbell, Environmental Programs 
Manager; Captain Scott Taylor, Police Department; Frank Barnett, Maintenance Supervisor; 
Larry Cook, BZA; Al Guarisco, Village Point Foundation; Chester McConnell, Environmental 
Advisory Board; Randy Fry, Councilmember elect, District 4; Robin LeJeune, Councilmember 
elect, District 6; Pat Rudicell, Councilmember elect, District 2; Dane Haygood, Councilmember 
elect, District 7. 
 
ABSENT: David Carpenter, Police Chief. 
 
  
3. APPROVE MINUTES: 
 
MOTION BY Councilwoman Conaway to adopt the September 17, 2012 council meeting 
minutes.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 
 
AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 
                        NAY    NONE OPPOSED                   MOTION CARRIED 
 
PRROCLAMATION:     Literacy Awareness Week / October 1-7, 2012 
 
Councilman John Lake read and presented the proclamation. 
 
 
PROCLAMATION:  Blue Ribbon School Recognition / Daphne High School 
 
Mayor Yelding read and presented the proclamation to Dr. Foster, Principal of Daphne High 
School. 
 
 

6



MOTION:  Set Special Council Work Session Date 
 
MOTION BY Councilman Scott to set a Special Council Work Session for October 22, 
2012 at 6:30 p.m. in the Executive Conference room to include the new council members to 
talk about committees and answer questions on procedures.  Seconded by Councilman 
Boulware. 
 
AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
MOTION:  Set Special Called Council Meeting Date to Canvass the Vote for the October 9, 
2012 Municipal Run-Off Election 
 
MOTION BY Councilman Scott to suspend the rules to consider a motion to set a Special 
Called Council meeting for October 16, 2012 at 10:00 a.m. to canvass the vote for the 
October 9, 2012 Municipal Run-Off Election.  Seconded by Councilman Palumbo. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE 
 
Conaway  Aye    Boulware  Aye 
Lake   Aye    Palumbo  Aye 
Reese   Aye    Barnette  Aye 
Scott   Aye 
 
AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 
 
MOTION BY Councilman Scott to set a Special Called Council meeting for October 16, 
2012 at 10:00 a.m. to canvass the vote for the October 9, 2012 Municipal Run-Off Election.  
Seconded by Councilman Boulware. 
 
AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
 
4. REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEES: 
 A. FINANCE – Boulware 
The next meeting will be October 8th at 4:00 p.m. in the Executive Conference room. 
 
 
 B. BUILDINGS AND PROPERTY COMMITTEE – Lake 
The committee met before the council meeting, and the minutes will be in the next packet. 
 

7



 C. PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE – Boulware 
The minutes for the September 12th meeting are in the packet. 
 
 D. CODE ENFORCEMENT / ORDINANCE COMMITTEE – Boulware 
No report. The committee did not meet because the Alcohol and Social Media ordinances were 
not ready.   
 
Mr. Ross stated that he will have the ordinances for the next committee meeting. 
 
 E.        PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE/ SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY – Conaway 
No report. 
 
5. REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS: 
 A. Board of Zoning Adjustments – Adrienne Jones 
The next meeting will be October 4th.   The board still needs two (2) supernumerary members. 
 
 B. Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Barnette 
The next meeting will be October 29th at 5:30 p.m. 
 
 C. Industrial Development Board – Conaway 
The minutes for the September 24th meeting are in the packet.  
 
 D. Library Board – Lake 
The minutes for the May, June, July and August meetings are in the packet.  He mentioned that 
electronic books are available through the Library. 
 
 E. Planning Commission – Barnette 
Mrs. Jones stated that the Planning Commission sent forth a favorable recommendation for the 
AT&T proposal. 
 
 F. Recreation Board – Reese 
No report. 
 
 G. Utility Board – Scott 
The minutes for the August meeting are ion the packet, and the next meeting will be October 31st 
at 5:00 p.m. in the council chambers. 
 
6. REPORTS OF THE OFFICERS: 
 A. Mayor’s Report 
                        a.)  Parade Permit / Prodisee Pantry “Turkey Trot” / 5K & 1 Mile Fun Run / October  
                                 26, 2013 
 
 

8



MOTION BY Councilman Lake to approve the Parade Permits for  Daphne High School  
Homecoming Parade / September 20, 2012 and  Bounds Family YMCA / 5K & 1 Mile Fun 
Run / November 3, 2012.  Seconded by Councilwoman.    

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 
 
MOTION:  To authorize the Mayor to enter into a contract with AT&T for “Cellular on                              
                    Wheels” for a period of one (1) year at a rate of $1,000 per month. 
 
MOTION BY Councilman Palumbo to authorize the Mayor to enter into a contract with 
AT&T for “Cellular on Wheels” for a period of one (1) year at a rate of $1,000 per month.  
Seconded by Councilman Boulware. 
 
Mr. Ross stated that if AT&T wants an extension past the one year it will have to come back to 
council for approval. 
 
AYE    ALL IN FAVOR         NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
 B. City Attorney Report 
No report. 
 
 C. Department Head Comments 
Margaret Thigpen – Civic Center Director – reported that the Jack & Jill Consignment is 
currently at the Civic Center, and election is Tuesday. 
 
Richard Johnson – Public Works Director – reported that Well Road is complete and open, 
Pinehill Road is under construction, Main Street repairs will begin and then paving, Lake Forest 
Phase II paving bid opening is Thursday and the Sports Complex is under way. 
 
David Cohen – City Clerk - reminded everyone that October 4th is the last day to apply for a 
regular absentee ballot and the last day for emergency medical and business absentee is October 
8th. 
 
 
7. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: 
Mr. Dane Haygood – City Councilman Elect – District 7 – spoke regarding the repealing of 
Ordinance 2009-25 and the budget saying that it was the consensus of the new council members 
to ask council to lay the budget ordinance and the repealing of Ordinance 2009-25 over for the 
new council to take up in November. 
 

9



 
8. RESOLUTIONS, ORDINANCES, ORDERS AND OTHER BUSINESS: 
  
 RESOLUTIONS: 
a.)    Coastal Impact Assistance Programs Tier 1 – Watershed 
         Hydrologic Model Development & Un-Named Tributary 
         To D’Olive Creek Stream Restoration Grant. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2012-75 
 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Resolutions 2012-75. Seconded 
by Councilwoman Lake. 
 
AYE    ALL IN FAVOR         NAY    NONE OPPOSED           MOTION CARRIED 
 
MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Resolution 2012-75.  Seconded by Councilman 
Lake. 
 
AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
 
 
  ORDINANCES: 
           1ST   READ 
a.)   Revise Zoning Map. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2012-54      
 
b.)   Repeal Ordinance 2009-25 / $500,000 Annual Funding from 
        the General Fund for Street & Road Infrastructure Projects . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2012-55     
 
c.)  Amending Job Classification Schedule: City Clerk Position . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2012-56     
 
d.)  Approve Personnel Restructure: Police Administrative 
       Technician & Planning Administrative Technician Positions 
        Pay Grade Change. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2012-57 
 
e.)    FY 2013 Budget. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  /Ordinance 20123-58 
        
 
 
 
 

10



MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Ordinance 2012-54.  Seconded by 
Councilman Lake. 
 
AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 
      
MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Ordinance 2012-54.  Seconded by Councilman 
Lake. 
 
AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY   NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 
 
MOTION BY Councilman Palumbo to waive the reading of Ordinance 2012-55, 2012-56, 
2012-57 and 2012-58.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 
 
AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 
 
MOTION BY Councilman Palumbo to adopt Ordinance 2012-55.  Seconded by 
Councilman Scott. 
 
AYE    Conaway, Lake, Scott, Palumbo, Barnette  NAY    Reese, Boulware 
 
                                                                MOTION CARRIED 
 
MOTION BY Councilman Palumbo to adopt Ordinance 2012-56.  Seconded by 
Councilwoman Conaway. 
 
AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 
 
MOTION BY Councilman Palumbo to adopt Ordinance 2012-57.  Seconded by 
Councilman Lake. 
 
AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION  CARRIED 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

11



MOTION BY Councilman Palumbo to adopt Ordinance 2012-58.  Seconded by 
Councilwoman Conaway. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE 
 
Conaway      Aye    Boulware  Nay 
Lake    Aye    Palumbo  Aye 
Reese    Nay    Barnette  Aye 
Scott    Nay 
 
AYE    Conaway, Lake, Palumbo, Barnette  NAY    Reese, Scott, Boulware 
 
                                                          MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
 
 
9. COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
Councilman Lake commented that the new council members do not know the department heads, 
and it would take three (3) to four (4) months to know the departments.  It is better to have a 
budget in place to guide them. 
 
Councilman Boulware said it was a pleasure to serve on the council, and it is an experience that 
few realize that will never be forgotten. He said he has served with good people for the last four 
(4) years who have worked to make the city better. 
 
Councilwoman Palumbo – congratulated Daphne High School on the Blue Ribbon designation.  
He said that only 250 schools a year get that award, and Daphne is the only high school in 
Baldwin County to achieve that designation.  He feels folks don’t realize what a gem they have 
in Daphne High School.  He encouraged everyone to go out to the band jamboree at Baldwin 
County High School.   He thanked everyone that has helped him in his eight (8) years on the 
council, especially, the employees.  He said that the employees are the backbone of the city. He 
said that council and mayors come and go, but the employees are here for the long haul.  He has 
learned a lot being Council President.  He said you really get to know the department heads.  He 
wished the employees a lot of luck, and thanked the City Clerk, the Assistant City Clerk and the 
City Attorney for all their help. 
 
Council President Barnette – thanked Mr. Palumbo for all that he has done, especially for the 
Dog Park.  She addressed the comment made by Mr. Haygood in Public Participation regarding a 
“consensus of the new council”.  She mentioned that this was a violation of the Open Meetings 
Act (formerly the Sunshine Law).  She said it is important to get training on this law, and 
transparency in government.  
 

12



 
10. ADJOURN: 
 
MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adjourn.  Seconded by Councilwoman Conaway. 
 
AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 7:42 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted by, 
 
 
_______________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk, MMC 
 
        Certification of Presiding Officer, 
 
 
        __________________________________ 
        Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 

13



CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
STANDING COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 
FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT 

 
                                                                    
                                                                   

                                                                  
 
                                                                  
 
                                                                  
 

BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE REPORT  
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    

PLANNING/ZONING/CODE ENFORCEMENT COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
 

PUBLIC SAFETY/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    

                                                                  
 
                                                                  
 

PUBLIC WORKS/BEAUTIFICATION/MUSEUM COMMITTEE  REPORT 
 
                                                                  
 
                                                                  

14



CITY OF DAPHNE 
FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES 

OCTOBER 8, 2012 
4:00 P.M. 

 
I.      CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 
The meeting was called to order at 4:00 pm.  Present were Chairman Derek Boulware, Councilwoman Tommie 
Conaway, Councilman Ron Scott, Finance Director Kim Briley, Deputy Director Christine Ciancetta, Senior 
Accountant Suzânne Henson and Accounting Technician Sue Moody.  
 
Also in attendance were Human Resources Director Vickie Hinman, Public Works Director Richard Johnson,   
Civic Center Director Margaret Thigpen, Police Captain Daniel Bell, Recreation Director David Mckelroy.  
 
In addition attending were HMR representative Tim Lawley, newly elected Councilman-District 7 Dane Haygood, 
and newly elected Councilman-District 2 Pat Rudicell. 
 
Chairman Derek Boulware left the meeting at 4:10p.m.  The meeting was thereafter chaired by Councilman Ron 
Scott. 
 
 

II.      PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
        
A. Mr. Tim Swanson – previously ran for Council Seat 
 
Mr. Tim Swanson discussed his concerns on needed tax relief.  Mr. Swanson discussed questions he had 
about the adopted budget concerning capital.  Mr. Scott explained that in recent years that the operating budget 
is adopted then capital request are prioritized for consideration.  Discussion continued on the budget and the 
City’s financial reports. 

 
B. FY2011 Audit – Smiths, Dukes, and Buckalew, Mr. Mark Chapman & Mrs. Kelli Rice 

 
Mr. Chapman reviewed the audit. Mr. Chapman noted that in most small municipalities his staff prepares the 
financials for the annual audit but noted that Ms. Briley prepares all the financials for the City of Daphne.  Mr. 
Chapman answered questions regarding the increase in revenues for FY11 and noted that outstanding debt 
decreased.  Mr. Chapman noted an Unqualified Opinion was given and no audit findings were reported.   
             
     
III.    HUMAN RESOURCES BUSINESS 
 
A.  Update on Human Resources Department Activity 
 
Vickie Hinman reviewed the Human Resource Report. 
 
Positions   Status 
  
Library Services Technician DOH: October 3, 2012 
Communications Officer  Reviewing Applications (115) 
Public Service Worker  Reviewing Applications (55) 
Admin Tech (Mechanical) Interviewing 
 
      
Next safety committee meeting will be held November 28, 2012 at 10:00 a.m. 
 
Human Resource projects include: 
 
Conference Calls with Kronos regarding new server and upgrades. 
Reviewing Personnel Handbook (revisions needed) 

15



Finance Minutes.doc  2  

2012-2012 Flexible Spending Enrollment 
Issuing Safety awards to employees 
Flu Shots administered at Eastern Shore Urgent Care and Bayside Urgent Care for employees 
New Employee Orientation was held for 12 new hires 
 
 
IV. CURRENT BUSINESS 
 
A.  Financial Reports 

 
1.  Treasurer’s Report:  September 30, 2012 
 
The Treasurer’s Report totaling $18,845,224.67 was presented by Ms. Briley. 
 
Motion by Mrs. Conaway  to accept the Treasurer’s Report as of September 30, 2012, in 
the amount of $18,845,224.67.  Seconded by Mr. Scott.   Motion carried. 
 
 
2.  Sales and Use Taxes: August  30th , 2012 
The Sales and Use Tax reports were presented by Ms. Briley and discussion was made that sales & use taxes 
were up.  
 
Sales and Use Tax Collected for August 2012    -   $909,579 
Sales and Use Tax Budgeted for August 2012    -   $848,627             
Over Budget (for August))                                 -    $60,951.90  
 
YTD Budget Collections Variance – Over Budget - $131,082.64 
 
 
3.  Lodging Tax Collections, August 30th , 2012  
 
The Lodging Tax Collections report shows $50,417.73 collected for August 2012.  
 
4.  Report: New Business Licenses – August 2012 
 
The list of new businesses, and businesses closed, in September was included in the packet.  
 
5.  Bills Paid Reports – September 2012 
 
The Bills Paid Report was included in Packet #2. 
 
 
B.  Bids 
 
1.  2012-R-Fiber Installation & Service 
 
Ms. Henson reviewed the bid minutes noting that the bid was advertised and several packets of specifications 
were sent out to vendors.  Ms. Henson discussed the project was approved by Council to go out to bid and that 
Phase I was included in the FY2013 Budget.  Ms. Henson noted that several City locations were listed in phase 
II but that fiber is either not available or cost effective for all locations at this time so the low bidder only included 
the Civic Center/Recreation facility in their bid submittal.  Ms. Henson noted the appropriation request to include 
the Civic Center/Recreation facility was listed under Appropriation request so that Council could include all 
locations presented in the bid submittal. 
(Fiber will also allow the City to connect to the County’s GIS System and Police to connect to the County’s 911 Service) 

 

16



Finance Minutes.doc  3  

Motion by Mr. Scott to recommend Council adopt a resolution awarding the following 
bid:  2012-R-Fiber Installation & Service to JMF Solutions, Inc. in the amount of 
$63,036. Seconded by Mrs. Conaway.  Motion carried. 
  
2. 2012-S-Lake Forest Road Improvements, Phase II.    
 
Mr. Johnson reviewed the bid and recommended the bid be awarded to the low bidder, Asphalt Services, Inc. in 
the amount of $1,264,113.25.  Mr. Johnson presented total project cost including engineering in the amount of 
$1,396,845.25.  Mr. Johnson noted this project is for the Northern part of Ridgewood. This project was included 
in the 2012 Warrant.  Discussion continued that $3 million was included in the 2012 Warrant for road projects. 
Ms. Briley noted that the Main Street project in the amount of $ 876,930 is also budgeted to come out of the $ 3 
million. 
 

 
Motion by Mrs. Conaway to recommend Council adopt a resolution awarding the 
following bid:  2012-S-Lake Forest Road Improvements, Phase II to Asphalt Services, 
Inc.  in the amount of $1,264,113.25.  Seconded by Mr. Scott.  Motion carried. 

 
C.  Appropriation Request 
1.  Wireless Services & Fiber: Phase II – Civic Center/Recreation Facility 
Ms. Henson reviewed the timeline of changes for the Fiber/Wireless project that started as one project but was 
required, due to legal advisement, to be split into two projects with Fiber required to be bid.  The final cost of the 
two projects will require an appropriation of (1) $14,400 for wireless monthly recurring cost and (2) $8,400 for 
Civic Center/Recreation monthly recurring cost for fiber.  Ms. Henson noted that the installation of the fiber and 
wireless infrastructure/equipment has been encumbered and awaiting the approval of the projects and that 
Phase I Fiber was budgeted in the FY2013 Budget. 
(FY13 monies were budgeted from the cost proposal of the projects before they were required to be separated 
into two projects). (Wireless will be available for all City buildings and provide primary internet connectivity for 
those locations where fiber is not available or not cost effective for installation.) 

 
Motion by Mrs. Conaway to recommend Council to appropriate $22,800 from the 
General Fund for Wireless Service: Internal City Network and Civic Center/Recreation 
monthly recurring cost for fiber.  Seconded by Mr. Scott.  Motion carried. 
 
 
2. New Police Vehicles (4 Tahoes) 
 
Captain Danny Bell discussed the need for four new vehicles for the Police Department.  Captain Bell explained 
the timeline on ordering and the need to order the vehicles now.  Discussion was made on the vehicles being 
purchased from the State Bid vs. the City bidding.  Mr. Boulware made a request that the final approval for the 
new Tahoes be presented to the new council members. (2nd

 Read on the Ordinance will be presented to the 
new Council in November) It was noted that these are replacement vehicles. 
 
Motion by Mr. Scott to recommend Council to appropriate $170,700 from the General 
Fund to allow the Police Department to meet the needed timeline to order four Tahoe 
vehicles from the State Bid.  Seconded by Mrs. Conaway.  Motion carried. 
 
 
D.  2012 Construction Fund:  Investment 
 
Ms. Briley discussed that the monies in the 2012 Construction Fund are receiving very little interest and 
recommended that the $3,000,000 for road projects be moved to an investment account through Raymond 
James until needed for expenditures.  Ms. Briley noted the monies in the investment account would be liquid 
and available for withdrawal upon request.  Discussion continued this would bring a better rate of return. The 
City has other funds invested with Raymond James and the return has been good. 

17



Finance Minutes.doc  4  

 

Motion by Mrs. Conaway to recommend Council to invest the $3,000,000 through 
Raymond James until expenditures are required for the road projects.  Seconded by 
Mr. Scott.  Motion carried. 
 
E.  Summary: Volunteer Firefighter Reimbursement 
 
Ms. Briley presented the summary for the Volunteer Firefighter reimbursements pursuant to the request by the 
committee made in September.  Mr. Scott noted that the Volunteers Firefighters receive Ad Valorem taxes each 
year along with other contributions which allows them to enter into cooperative agreements with the City for 
capital purposes.  Mr. Scott asked about the Profit Drive road project as related to Fire Station #5.  Mr. Johnson 
noted that bid is in progress and should be presented at the November Finance meeting. 
 
F.  Declare City Property Surplus 
 
Ms. Henson presented the following equipment for surplus: 

Street                41 
 

 

1999 FORD TRUCK PU F SERIES 1FTRX17W2XNA97640 
 

      
  
Motion by Mrs. Conaway to recommend Council adopt a resolution declaring the listed 
property surplus and authorize the Mayor to dispose of surplus property.  Seconded 
by Mr. Scott.  Motion carried. 
 
     
 

V. OLD BUSINESS 
     
    
 
VI. ADJOURN   
 
The meeting was adjourned at 4:59 p.m. 
 
 
 

18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



Ordinance Committee 

 Wednesday, October 10, 2012 

City Hall Council Chambers 

5:30 p.m. 
        

Councilman Kelly Reese       
Councilman Ron Scott                                                                  

Councilman Derek Boulware 

 
 

 

            
 

I.         CALL TO ORDER/MEMBERS PRESENT 
 

Kelly Reese and Ron Scott were present. 

Also present were David Cohen, Scot Hetrick, Vickie Hinman, Pat Rudicel, and Rick Whitehead. 

 

II. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

 

Bill Boor spoke in regard to the dog ordinance referring to specifically barking.  He has a 
neighbor that has excessive barking dogs and wanted the ordinance to be strengthened to deal 

with the problem. 

 

III.     ORDINANCE REVIEW/DISCUSSION 

 

a. Use of Social Media by Employees 

 
Motion by Mr. Scott Seconded by Mr. Reese  To recommend to city council. 

 

ALL IN FAVOR NONE OPPOSED  MOTION CARRIED 
 

b.  Use of Alcoholic Beverages within the City of Daphne 

 
             Motion by Mr. Scott Seconded by Mr. Reese  To recommend to city council. 

  

             ALL IN FAVOR NONE OPPOSED  MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

c. Any other actions or discussions deemed necessary for the Ordinance Committee to               

consider. 
 

IV. OTHER BUSINESS 

 
None 

 

V.   ADJOURN 

 
             Motion by Mr. Scott Seconded by Mr. Reese  To adjourn. 

 

             ALL IN FAVOR NONE OPPOSED  MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

 

 

 
42



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

43



 

44



CITY OF DAPHNE CHAIRMAN - Councilman Tommie Conaway, District 1 

PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE MEETING Councilwoman Cathy Barnette, District 2 

Time: 5:00 PM on September 17, 2012  Councilman John Lake, District 3 

Location: City Hall Council Chambers 

 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER  
  The September meeting of the Public Works Committee was called to order at 5:00 PM   

 

Present: Mayor Bailey Yelding, Councilwoman Tommie Conaway, Councilman John Lake, 

Richard D. Johnson-Director Public Works, Sandra Cushway-PW Administrative 

Assistant, Ashley Campbell-Daphne EPM, Randy Davis-Volkert Engineering, 

Dorothy Morrison-DBC, Lee Reach-ALDOT, David McClurg-Resident, Councilman 

Pat Rudicell 

 

II. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION & CORRESPONDENCE 
A. Work Request Report – August reports reviewed.   

B. Vehicle/Equipment Maintenance Report – August & YTD reports reviewed. Councilman 

Lake questioned why Code Enforcement had such a high non-maintenance total.  Richard to 

check with Duke and respond to Councilman Lake. 

C. Public Participation – David McClurg (Sidewalks and Pedestrian Traffic from Brookhaven 

Subdivision).  Mr. McClurg reported that he feels that there is an issue with public safety for 

residents who wish to walk their children to school from the Brookhaven Subdivision. And 

new houses are going up every day. Getting across Whispering Pines is almost impossible and 

dangerous.  He stated that he has discussed several options with Richard Johnson.  Richard 

stated that a northbound sidewalk that would connect to Brookhaven would be a hard sell.  

Not covered under Dare walk to school program.  Additionally, we were not selected for any 

Safe Routes to School grants this year.  The plan is to ultimately extend the sidewalk to CR13 

to Sehoy and eventually tie in Brookhaven.  To add to street goals, pick up at existing 

sidewalks and provide a safe crossing.  Richard stated that they are using Thermo-plast on all 

new and replacement crosswalks.  It lasts 5 times longer than regular striping.   

D. Public Participation –  

E. Correspondence – None 

F.  

 

III. OLD BUSINESS  

A. Minutes – August 20, 2012.  Motion made by Councilwoman Lake to accept the minutes 

as presented.  Motion seconded by Councilwoman Conaway.  Motion carried. 

B. Mosquito Reports – August reports reviewed.  Councilman Lake asked what the current 

policy is concerning mosquito spraying.  He is receiving a lot of complaints from Summer 

Oaks.  Richard responded that mosquitos and spraying has been consistent for this time of the 

year. 
C. Street Sweeper Reports – August reports reviewed.  It was noted that Park City was not 

swept.  Sandi to speak to Freddie Johnson, Street Supervisor to ensure that Park City is swept 

each month. 
D. ALDOT – Lee Reach reported on the new signals and poles that will be placed at CR 64/Hwy 

98 and Whispering Pines/Hwy 98.  The signals and poles for CR 64/Hwy 98 shipped last 

week.  The foundation needs to be poured by the end of the month.  This year, we adopted the 

new 2009 MUTCD Guidelines for all traffic controls.  Changes in this law will require public 

education. He is hoping to put together something in the upcoming weeks.  Richard added that 

part of the safety improvements shifted so that if you are making a left turn, you have a clear 

view.  There are now protected left turn lanes.  The new sequence will be a yellow turn arrow, 

a red turn arrow, then a flashing yellow “caution” turn arrow.  This is all new to both the 

public and public safety.  It is video controlled and LED.  The Whispering Pines/Hwy 98 

intersection will be the same way.  Councilman Lake stated that the Police Department will 
45



need close police patrol at first until the public gets used to the new system.  The Whispering 

Pines intersection will be installed approximately two (2) months after the CR 64/Hwy 98 

intersection. 
E. Appraisal – Ashley reported that the appraisal came back for the 17 acres. Common Market 

Value was placed at $150,000.  The property is cut in half by Yancy Branch.  There is some 

potential for development when the market recovers.  The owner of the property approached 

the City with a purchase price of $149,000.  Please review appraisal.  Restoration would cost 

approximately $50K.  Ashley suggested that we request $200K to purchase and restore for 

future City recreational use.  Richard stated that the majority of material that is clogging up 

Yancy Branch is coming from this property.  The value in purchasing the property would be in 

restoring and remediating for City usage.  Ashley has been working on this for the past 10 

years and has been unsuccessful in procuring grant money to restore the property because it 

was private property.  Once we become the owner that opens up potential opportunities.  

Councilman Lake made a motion to bring appraisal to the Finance Committee and the 

next Council Work Session for discussion.  Motion seconded by Councilwoman 

Conaway.   
 

IV. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Gator Alley – Richard reported that he is working on a simplified plan for parking at Gator 

Alley.  Trying to look at impervious parking lot.  The current parking lot is eroding and is 

difficult to maintain.  Should cost approximately $20-30K to accomplish. Councilman Lake 

asked if there is room for additional parking at that location.  It is a very popular location and 

parking overflows on weekends.  Richard stated that they are looking at maximizing the 

parking spaces.  There is also a 20’ x 20’ lot that Buddy Breland is asking $200K for.   

 
V. DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

A. Capital Roads Improvement Projects Update –   The binder is down on Well Road.  Have 

been unable to accomplish much this past week due to rain.  Hosea Weaver not starting the 

Main Street resurfacing project until October 1st.  Pine Hill work was supposed to start last 

Wednesday.  Lake Forest Phase II project is current in advertisement.  There is a pre-bid 

meeting this Thursday.  Profit Drive – need to meet with Jaye at HMR to get an update. 

 

VI. SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY 

A. Monthly Equipment Use Report – SW Coordinator on Medical Leave – No reports 

Available. 

B. Monthly Recycle Tonnage Report (Last Quarter Tonnage Comparison).  SW Coordinator on 

Medical Leave – No reports Available.  

C. We operate our Solid Waste as an Enterprise.  Included in Solid Waste is Garbage, Recycling 

and Trash (yard debris).  Some trash gets recycled, some goes to the landfill.  Currently, 

Recycling is producing 147 tons on average per month, predicting to have an income of 

$124K.  If we didn’t recycle, we would pay the county $30/ton for all of the recyclables plus 

the cost of moving it.  Recycling is running at a positive quarter of a million dollars.  Recycle 

trucks run five (5) days a week.  They have to stop and unload daily.  Our recycling program 

is ultimately revenue neutral.   

 

VII. MUSEUM COMMITTEE 

A. Minutes – Minutes for August 13, 2012 meeting reviewed.  No comments 

 

VIII. BEAUTIFICATION COMMITTEE 

A. Minutes – September 7, 2012 minutes omitted in error. 

B. Update –   Dorothy has communicated with businesses along Main Street about the mini-

grants being offered by Community Development in hopes that they will apply to have their 

parking lots paved.  She stated that she needs a contact person for the Bethel Church.  Mayor 

Yelding to provide that information.  The DBC needs new members.  The number of members 

has dwindled.  There should be at least two members representing each district.   
46



 

IX. ENVIRONMENT ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

A. September meeting changed to Monday – October 1, 2012 at 4:00 PM. 

 

X. ENGINEER REPORT 

A. HMR Update – Not present 

B. Volkert Update – Nothing to report 

  

XI. FUTURE BUSINESS 

B. Next Meeting – October 15, 2012 

 

XII. ADJOURNMENT   

The meeting adjourned at 6:03 PM.  

47



CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
REPORTS OF SPECIAL COMMITTEES 

 
NOTES: 
 
BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENTS REPORT:
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY REPORT: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD: 
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
LIBRARY BOARD: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
PLANNING COMMISSION REPORT: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
RECREATION BOARD REPORT: 
 
                                                                    
UTILITY BOARD REPORT: 
 
                                                                          
 
 
 

48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MAYOR'S REPORT 

 
 

NOTES: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
  
 
 
 
 

95



96



97



CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 
NOTES:                                                              
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
                                                                    

                                                                    
DEPARTMENT HEAD’S COMMENTS  

 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 

                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
      
 
 
 
 

98



 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
RESOLUTIONS, ORDINANCES, ORDERS & OTHER BUSINESS 

 
NOTES: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
 
 
 
 

99



      RESOLUTION 2012 - 76 
VACATION OF EASEMENT(S) 

J.R. & MELISSA ALLSTUN 
LOTS 101 & 102, LAKE FOREST SUBDIVISION, UNIT 14 

  
 WHEREAS, J.R. & Melissa Allstun has presented to the City Council of Daphne, Alabama a 
petition seeking vacation of certain drainage and utility easement(s), the desire to vacate said easement(s), 
and said consent to the vacation thereof has been given by certain entities and abutting landowners having 
certain rights therein; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of  Daphne, Alabama does assent to and approve the vacation  
and the annulment of the dedication thereof as reflected on said recorded plat and/or restrictive covenants of 
Lake Forest Subdivision, Unit 14. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE MAYOR AND THE CITY 
COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, that the act of the aforesaid petitioner in 
vacating and annulling the easement(s) is described as follows: 
 

The five (5) foot drainage and utility easement(s) on each side of the lot line dividing lot(s) 101 & 
102, Unit 14, of the Lake Forest Subdivision, as shown in Map Book 7, Page 104, in the Office of 
the Judge of Probate, Baldwin County, Alabama, less and except the ten (10) foot drainage and 
utility easement(s) on the front and rear lot line of said property. Said easements being located in 
Section 32, Township 4 South, Range 2 East. 

 
Reference: 133 & 135 Broadmoor Drive 

 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council of Daphne, Alabama is authorized to 
execute this resolution and that the City Clerk is authorized and directed to attest and certify the same. 
 
ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR AND THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
DAPHNE, ALABAMA ON THIS THE ______ DAY OF ____________________, 2012. 
 

 THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 
   AN ALABAMA MUNICIPAL CORPORATION 
     
  

                                                                                                                          
CATHY S. BARNETTE, 

 COUNCIL PRESIDENT 
 DATE AND TIME SIGNED:                                                
                
 
                                                                           
 BAILEY YELDING, JR., 
 MAYOR    
 DATE AND TIME SIGNED:                                                                    

 
                            
  
 

                                              
DAVID L. COHEN,  
CITY CLERK, MMC 

 
100



 
 

101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



CITY OF DAPHNE 
 

RESOLUTION NO.: 2012-77 
 

ACCEPTANCE OF PORPERTY 
W. ANDREW JOHNSON & MICHAEL KIPPING 

============================================================
= 

 
 WHEREAS, W. Andrew Johnson and Michael Kipping desired to grant, bargain, sell and 
convey to the City of Daphne a certain parcel of real property and; 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Daphne hereby accepts the herein described real property and; 
 
 WHEREAS, said property is located within the corporate limits of the City of Daphne, 
Baldwin County, Alabama and is described as follows: 
 

Lot 19, Lake Forest, Unit 21, according to plat thereof recorded in 
Map Book 8, Page 29, of the records in the Office of the Judge of 
Probate of Baldwin County, Alabama. 

 
 NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA that the above described property is hereby 
accepted. 
 
      THE CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

AN ALABAMA MUNICIPAL CORPORATION 
  
 
 
CATHY S. BARNETTE, 
COUNCIL PRESIDENT 
 
 
 
BAILEY YELDING, JR., 
MAYOR 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
DAVID L. COHEN,  
CITY CLERK, MMC 

117



 

 

 

 

RESOLUTION 2012-78 

PREPAID TRAVEL 
 

 

 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

HEREBY AUTHORIZES THE FOLLOWING: 
 
 
Prepaid travel expenses are approved for the purpose and amount indicated below for the 
following: 
 

1. David Cohen, City Clerk, Certification Training Institute for Municipal Clerks / October 
24-26, 2012 / Tuscaloosa, AL / $140 

 

2. David Cohen, City Clerk, Grant Compliance Training / LWCF Recreational Trails 
Program / October 30-31, 2012 / Jacksonville, AL / $70 

 
A complete expense summary with receipts will be submitted and approved by the Mayor upon 
return from the above. 
 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL, CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA on 

this           day of                      , 2012.              
                                                                               
 
                                                                                                                                                    
                                                                                                 
                                                                                 _________________________________ 
                                                                               Cathy S. Barnette,  

    Council President 

             
                              

     _________________________________ 
                                                                                Bailey Yelding, Jr.,  

     Mayor 
             
 

 

ATTEST: 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen,  

City Clerk, MMC 

118



RESOLUTION NO.  2012-79 
2012-R- FIBER INSTALLATION & SERVICE 

 
WHEREAS, The City of Daphne is required under section 41-16-20 of the Code 
of Alabama to secure competitive bids for items in excess of $15,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Daphne acknowledges that the monthly recurring cost 
for the FIBER SERVICE will exceed this amount; and 
 
WHEREAS, Staff has reviewed the bids for the FIBER INSTALLATION & 
SERVICE and determined that the bid as presented is reasonable; and 
 
WHEREAS, Staff recommends the bid for the FIBER INSTALLATION & 
SERVICE be awarded to JMF Solutions, Inc. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, 
THAT THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, hereby 
accept the bid of JMF Solution, Inc. in the amount of $63,036 as specified in BID 
SPECIFICATION NO: 2012-R- FIBER INSTALLATION & SERVICE as follows: 
 
 

PHASE I Synchronus 
Bandwidth 

MB 

JMF Solutions, Inc.  
Monthly Recurring Cost  

Includes Internet 
Services 

JMF Solutions, Inc.    
One-Time Install Cost  LOCATION TO INSTALL FIBER 

City Hall  10  $                           802.00   $                       1,500.00  
PD-Justice Center 10  $                           802.00   $                       1,500.00  
PD-North Precinct 5  $                           802.00   $                       1,500.00  
Public Works ( City will trench) 5  $                           699.00   $                       1,500.00  
Fire Station #2 5  $                           699.00   $                       1,500.00  
TOTAL                   $                        3,804.00     $                       7,500.00  
                X 12 Mos =  $45,648.00   

    PHASE II Synchronus 
Bandwidth 

MB 
Monthly Recurring Cost  One-Time Install Cost – 

Vendor Owns Fiber  LOCATIONS TO INSTALL FIBER 
Recreation & Civic Center 5  $                           699.00   $                       1,500.00  
TOTAL    $                           699.00    
TOTAL ANNUAL  (X 12 MONTHS)    $                        8,388.00   $                         1,500.00  
TOTAL RECURRING ANNUAL COST-PH I & II  $                      54,036.00   $                         9,000.00  

 
 

JMF Solutions, Inc. 

 
 $                     63,036.00  
 

  

PROJECT COMPLETION 
TIME : __120__DAYS 

TOTAL PROJECT COST 
FOR 1ST YEAR 

 
 
 
 

119



 
 
RESOLUTION 2012-79            FIBER INSTALLATION & SERVICE                PAGE   2 
 
 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS             day of                            , 2012 
 
                                                                                                                                                                                                              
                                                                ________________________________ 
                                                                     Cathy S. Barnette,  

Council President 
       
     

                                                                                                                                                                                            
_____________________________ 

                                                                     Bailey Yelding, Jr.,  
Mayor 
        

 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen,  
City Clerk MMC 
 
 

120



RESOLUTION 2012-80 
  2012-S-LAKE FOREST ROAD IMPROVEMENTS PHASE II 

  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne is required under section 39-1-1(E) of the Code of Alabama to 
secure competitive bids for public works contracts in excess of $ 50,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne acknowledges that LAKE FOREST ROAD IMPROVEMENTS, 
PHASE II will exceed $50,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne did receive and review bids for the LAKE FOREST ROAD 
IMPROVEMENTS, PHASE I I and has determined that the bid as presented is reasonable; and 
 
WHEREAS, funding was included in the 2012 Warrant for construction ($1,264,113.25)  and 
engineering ($101,129 + $31,603) (Total project cost incl Engineering is-$1,396,845.25); and 
 
WHEREAS, staff recommends the bid for LAKE FOREST ROAD IMPROVEMENTS, PHASE II be 
awarded to Asphalt Services, Inc.. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, THAT THE 
MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, hereby accept the bid from 
Asphalt Services, Inc. in the amount of $1,264,113.25 as specified in BID SPECIFICATION 
NO. 2012-S-LAKE FOREST ROAD IMPROVEMENTS, PHASE II.   
 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, this         day of                      , 2012. 
 

 
 
________________________________ 

                                                                       Cathy S. Barnette,  
Council President 

                                                                        
     

                                                                                                                                                                                              
                                                                      _________________________________ 
                                                                       Bailey Yelding, Jr.,  

Mayor 
                                                                            
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen,  
City Clerk,  MMC 

121



 
 
 
 

Resolution 2012-81 
 

Investment Account Manager & Investment 
2012 Construction Fund 

 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne issued the 2012 Warrants and is holding funds in the 
approximate amount of $ 3,008,000 in the 2012 Construction Fund for the purpose of 
funding future road resurfacing projects; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has determined that it can better maximize its earnings in the 2012  
Construction Fund by investing in governmental obligations; and  
 
WHEREAS, section 11-81-21 of the Code of Alabama authorizes and legislates the 
types of obligations municipalities may invest in; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne has evaluated the 2012 Construction Fund and 
determined that Raymond James & Associates is qualified to serve the City in the 
capacity of Investment Manager of such funds and invest the City of Daphne’s 2012 
Construction Funds in governmental securities in accord with the Code of Alabama. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that the Mayor and Finance Director are hereby authorized to take all the 
steps necessary to transfer the 2012 Construction Fund account to Raymond James 
and Associates for the investment of such funds in government securities.  Such 
investment will be liquid with funds available to the City as needed.  
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Daphne this _____ 
day of ____________, 2012. 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Cathy Barnette, Council President 
       
 
      _____________________________________ 
      Bailey Yelding, Jr, Mayor 
       
 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________ 
David L. Cohen, 
City Clerk, MMC 

122



RESOLUTION 2012 - 82 
 
 

A RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN PERSONAL PROPERTY SURPLUS  AND 
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO DISPOSE OF SUCH PROPERTY 

 
 
WHEREAS,  the Department Heads of the City of Daphne have determined that the items listed 
below are no longer required for public or municipal purposes;  and 
 
WHEREAS, the items listed below are recommended for disposal. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED,  by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne 
that  
 

1- The property listed below is hereby declared to be surplus property, and 
     
    

DEPT TAG/VEH#          DESCRIPTION                                                   VIN      

Street                41 
 

 
1999 FORD TRUCK PU F SERIES 1FTRX17W2XNA97640 
 

       
 

 
 
 
          2- The Mayor is authorized to advertise and accept bids through Govdeals.com as  
               contracted for the sale of such personal property, and 
 
          3-  The Mayor is authorized to sell said property to the highest bidder and deposit any and      
               all  proceeds to the General Fund.  The Mayor is further authorized to direct the           
               disposition of any property which is not claimed by any bidder. 
 
 
ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 
ALABAMA, this               day of                   , 2012. 
           
 

_______________________________ 
                                                                              Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 
        
                                                                                                                                                                                           

_____________________________ 
                                                                              Bailey Yelding, Jr., Mayor 
       
 
ATTEST: 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk , MMC 

123



ORDINANCE 2012 - 59 
 
 

Wireless Service: Internal City Network & Fiber Service: Civic 
Center/Recreation Appropriation 

 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2012-58 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2013 
Budget on October 1, 2012; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2013 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2013 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the adopted budget includes funds for phase I of Fiber Installation & 
Service but does not include an appropriation for Phase II for the Civic 
Center/Recreation facility; and 
 
WHEREAS, due to changes in the project structure between the wireless and fiber 
installation additional funds are required for services.     
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that funds in the amount of $22,800 ($8,400 monthly recurring cost for the Civic 
Center/Recreation facility & $14,400 Wireless services) from the General Fund are hereby 
appropriated and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2013 budget for 1) Wireless 
service for an internal city network and 2) Fiber services for Civic Center/Recreation 
facility. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, this ____  day of  ________________  , 2012. 
 
         
                                                                      ________________________________ 

Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 
                           

 
_________________________________ 

                                                                       Bailey Yelding, Jr. , Mayor 
       
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk, MMC 

124



ORDINANCE 2012-60  
 

Appropriation: (4) Police Vehicle Replacements 
 

WHEREAS, Ordinance 2012-58 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2013 
Budget on October 1, 2012; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2013 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2013 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the police department has a plan to replace vehicles every six to 
seven years in order to maintain high performance and thereby reduce 
maintenance costs and provide additional protection to police officers in the event 
of accidents and high speed responses; and 
 
WHEREAS, due to the budget restraints replacement of Police vehicles has not 
been able to stay on schedule; and 
 
WHEREAS, four (4) vehicles (Chevy Tahoes) are requested to be purchased from 
the state bid contract to replace older vehicles. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that the Fiscal Year 2013 Budget is hereby amended to include a 
General Fund appropriation in the amount of $170,700 for the replacement of four 
police vehicles. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, this   ____     day of  ________________   , 2012. 
 
         
                                                                      ________________________________ 

Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 
                           

 
_________________________________ 

                                                                       Bailey Yelding, Jr. , Mayor 
       
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk, MMC 

125



   

CITY OF DAPHNE 

ORDINANCE NO. 2012-61 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

  

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING CITY OF DAPHNE ORDINANCE NOS. 1993-16 

AND 1993-21 AND ADOPTING A NEW ORDINANCE 

REGULATING THE USE OF ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES 

WITHIN THE CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA. 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne, adopted Ordinances 1993-16 

and 1993-21 regulating the use of alcoholic beverages, in 1993; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne, after due consideration 

believes that Ordinances 1993-16 and 1993-21 should be repealed and replaced with and a 

new Ordinance regulating the use of alcoholic beverages, repealing Ordinances 1993-16 

and 1993-21 in their entirety. 

 

 NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA AS FOLLOWS: 

 

SECTION I: REPEAL 
 

 This Ordinance specifically repeals Ordinances 1993-16 and 1993-21 in their 

entirety. 

 

SECTION II:  ADOPTION OF NEW ALCOHOL USE REGULATIONS. 

 

1. Definitions. The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this ordinance, 

shall have the meanings ascribed to them in this section, except where the context 

clearly indicates a different meaning:  

 

 “Public place” means any public street, alley, public way, right-of-way, sidewalk, 

or any public park, public playground, public parking lot, public building, public 

pier, or any other public property located within the corporate limits of the City of 

Daphne, Alabama. 

 

 “Special event” means a short-term, usually outdoor, event wherein any public 

place is to be temporarily used for the purposes of conducting the activity, such as 

a block party, festival, rodeo, bar-b-cue, cook-off, wine-tasting, beer-tasting, fund-

raiser, marathon, walk-a-thon, bike-a-thon, jogging activity, or any other similar 

organized activity whether for profit or not for profit. 

 

 “Adult person” means any person of legal drinking age (currently 21 years old or 

older). 

 

 “Alcoholic beverage” means any fluid or solid capable of being converted into a 

fluid, suitable for human consumption and having an alcoholic content of more 

than one-half of one percent of alcohol by volume, including but not limited to 

wine, spirits, distilled or rectified liquors, beer, ale, and other malt beverages, 

containing more than one-half of one percent of alcohol by volume. 
126



   
ORDINANCE 2012-61              REGULATING ALCOHOL IN PUBLIC PLACES           PAGE   2 

 

 

 “Open container” means any container which is immediately capable of being 

consumed from, or the seal of which has been broken. 

 

 “Nonprofit” means any bona fide charitable, benevolent, eleemosynary, 

educational, cultural, or governmental institution or organization, or any event held 

for nonprofit purposes regardless of whether the sponsor is a for-profit or nonprofit 

organization. 

 

2. General Prohibition.  Except as provided by this Ordinance, it shall be unlawful 

under this Ordinance for any person to drink or consume any alcoholic beverage in 

any public place, or to sell, purchase, exhibit, possess, carry, or transport any 

alcoholic beverage in an open container in any public place. 

 

3. City Functions.  Notwithstanding the general prohibition of this Ordinance, the 

Mayor or Council may permit or authorize the moderate social consumption of 

alcoholic beverages in designated public places by adult persons who are City 

officials, employees, agents, or representatives, and by invited guests of the City in 

connection with an official City function, such as, for example, a business 

development reception at City Hall for businesses considering relocation to the 

City.  No person may carry or transport into or out of the designated public place of 

the City function any alcoholic beverages in open containers. 

 

4. Daphne Civic Center and Bayfront Pavilion. Notwithstanding the general 

prohibition of this Ordinance, at any special event, private party, or private 

function inside the Daphne Civic Center or at the Bayfront Pavilion (including only 

the interior rooms and the outdoor deck) authorized by the issuance of a permit to 

use those facilities, adult persons attending such special event, private party, or 

private function may consume or possess alcoholic beverages in open containers 

within such facilities.  No person may carry or transport into or out of the Civic 

Center or the Bayfront Pavilion any alcoholic beverages in open containers.  Sales 

of alcohol at the Civic Center or the Bayfront Pavilion are allowed only if 

permitted by and properly licensed by all of the appropriate and necessary 

governmental and state regulatory agencies.  The existing permit process for such 

events at the Civic Center or the Bayfront Pavilion shall not be changed or affected 

by this Ordinance. 

 

5. Specially Permitted Events. Notwithstanding the general prohibition of this 

Ordinance, at any special event in a designated public place (other than Civic 

Center or the Bayfront Pavilion) authorized by the issuance of a special event 

permit, adult persons attending such special event may consume or possess 

alcoholic beverages in open containers within the designated public space covered 

by the permit.  No person may carry or transport into or out of the designated 

public space covered by the permit any alcoholic beverages in open containers.  

Sales of alcohol at a specially permitted event by vendors are allowed only if 

permitted by and properly licensed by all of the appropriate and necessary 

governmental and state regulatory agencies.  No special event permit shall be 

granted for an event lasting longer than _____ consecutive calendar days.  No more 

than ______ such special event permits will be issued to any one person or  

127



   
ORDINANCE 2012-61              REGULATING ALCOHOL IN PUBLIC PLACES           PAGE   3 

 

 organization within a single calendar year.  In the event of inclement weather 

cancelation of a permitted event, another permit must be applied for and obtained 

pursuant to the provisions of this Ordinance. 

 

6. Application For Special Event Permit. A person seeking issuance of a special event 

permit for a special event in which consumption or possession of alcoholic 

beverages by adult persons in public places is desired by the event sponsor shall 

file an application with the City Clerk on forms provided by him.  Each application 

must comply with the following provisions: 

 

(1) Time for filing. An application for a special event permit shall be filed with 

the City Clerk not less than fifteen (15) days nor more than thirty (30) days 

before the date on which it is proposed to conduct the special event. 

 

(2) Late applications. Where good cause is shown by the applicant, the Mayor 

shall have the authority to consider any application hereunder which is filed 

less than ten (15) days before the date such special event is proposed to be 

conducted. 

 

(3) Contents. The application for a special event permit shall set forth the 

following information:  

a. The name, address and telephone number of the applicant; 

b. If the special event is designated to be held by, and on behalf of or 

for, any person other than the applicant, the applicant for such 

permit shall file with the City Clerk a communication in writing 

from the person proposing to hold the special event, authorizing the 

applicant to apply for the permit on his behalf; 

c. If the special event is proposed to be conducted for, on behalf of, or 

by an organization, the name, address and telephone number of the 

headquarters of the organization, and of the authorized and 

responsible heads of such organization;  

d. The name, address and telephone number of the person who will be 

the special event chairman and who will be responsible for its 

conduct;  

e. The date when the special event is to be conducted; 

f. The location of the special event; 

g. The general purpose of the special event, the estimated or 

approximate number of persons who will participate in the special 

event, the numbers and types of vehicles, if any, which will 

participate in the special event, and a description of any 

entertainment which will be part of such special event; 

h. The hours when such special event will start and terminate; 

i. A statement as to whether the special event will occupy all or only a 

portion of the streets or other public places proposed to be utilized; 

j. The specific assembly and dispersal locations, the specific route and 

the plans, if any, for disassembly and dispersal; 

k. Whether any music will be provided, either live or recorded; 

l. The number, types and locations of all loudspeakers and amplifying 

devices to be used; 

128



   
ORDINANCE 2012-61              REGULATING ALCOHOL IN PUBLIC PLACES           PAGE   4 

 

m. An assurance that the applicant will make provision for adequate 

police presence, if any, and that the applicant will conform to 

necessary fire prevention rules, regulations and guidelines;  

n. an assurance that the applicant will make provision for garbage and 

litter cleanup associated with the special event during and after the 

special event in the specified area;  

o. An assurance that the applicant will cause all booths, stands, signs 

and any other movable fixtures pertaining to the event to be 

removed immediately after the special event;  

p. Any additional information which the City Clerk shall find 

reasonably necessary to a fair determination as to whether a permit 

should be issued.  

 (4) Processing Fee. There shall be paid at the time of filing the application for 

special event permit a processing fee of ____ dollars ($__.00). 

 

7. Standards for Issuance of Special Event Permit. The City Clerk shall issue a special 

event permit as provided for hereunder when, from a consideration of the 

application and from such other information as may otherwise be obtained, the City 

Clerk, in consultation with the Police Chief, Fire Chief, and the Heads of the Public 

Works and Parks and Recreation Departments, where applicable, finds that: 

 (1) The consumption of alcoholic beverages or the possession of alcoholic 

beverages at the special event will not pose an adverse risk to the health and 

safety and peace of the City’s residents or pose an adverse risk to City 

property or private property. 

(2) The conduct of the special event will not substantially interrupt the safe and 

orderly movement of traffic contiguous to its location.  

(3) The conduct of the special event will not require the diversion of so great a 

number of police officers of the city to properly police the site and areas 

contiguous thereto as to prevent normal police protection to the city.  

(4) The concentration of persons and vehicles at the location of the special 

event will not unduly interfere with proper fire and police protection of, or 

ambulance service to, areas contiguous to such assembly areas.  

(5) The conduct and location of such special event will not interfere with the 

movement of firefighting equipment in route to a fire.  

(6) The conduct of the special event is not reasonably likely to cause injury to 

persons or property, to provoke disorderly conduct or create a disturbance.  

(7) The special event is not to be held for the sole purpose of advertising any 

product, goods or event, and is not designated to be held purely for private 

profit.  

 

8. Notice of Rejection or Alternative Permit.  The City Clerk shall act upon the 

application for a special event permit within ten (10) days after the filing thereof. If 

the City Clerk disapproves the application, the City Clerk shall mail to the 

applicant within eleven (11) days after the date upon which the application was 

filed, a notice of the City Clerk's action, stating the reasons for denial of the permit.   

The City Clerk, in denying an application for a special event permit, shall be 

empowered to authorize the conduct of the special event on a date, at a time, or at a 

location different from that named by the applicant. An applicant desiring to accept 

an alternate permit shall, within three (3) days after notice of the action by the City  

129



   
ORDINANCE 2012-61              REGULATING ALCOHOL IN PUBLIC PLACES           PAGE   5 

 

Clerk, file a written notice of acceptance with the City Clerk. An alternate special 

event permit shall conform to the requirements of and shall have the effect of a 

special event permit under this article. 

 

9. Revocation of Special Event Permit. The City Clerk and the Police Chief each shall 

have the authority to revoke a special event permit issued hereunder upon failure of 

the applicants or participants to comply with the standards for issuance and 

provisions herein set forth.  Such authority may be delegated to the officers or such 

other person designated by the City Clerk or Police Chief to supervise the special 

event.  

 

10. Appeal. An applicant who has been denied a permit or whose permit was revoked 

may file a written appeal of the decision with the Mayor within ten (10) days of the 

denial or revocation.  The Mayor will issue a decision on the appeal within ten (10) 

days of receipt of the appeal.  The time for a decision may be lengthened or 

shortened by the Mayor in extenuating circumstances. 

 

11. Notice of Permit to Other City Officials. Immediately upon the issuance of a 

special event permit, the City Clerk shall send a copy thereof to the Police Chief, 

Fire Chief, and the Heads of the Public Works and Parks and Recreation 

Departments, 

 

12. Contents of Permit. Any permit granted under this Ordinance may contain 

conditions reasonably calculated to reduce or minimize dangers and hazards to 

vehicular or pedestrian traffic and the public health, safety and welfare, including 

but not limited to changes or restrictions on the starting and ending times of the 

special event or the number of participants from those sought in the application. 

Each special event permit shall state the following information:  

(1) Starting time and ending time; 

(2) The specific portions of the streets or other public places allowed to be 

occupied by the special event; 

(3) Special regulations of activities within the designated public space covered 

by the special event permit, including but not limited to controlled access 

by fencing and gating, wristband identification of persons admitted to any 

such controlled zone, wristband identification of adult persons authorized to 

consume or possess alcoholic beverages in open containers, loudspeaker 

limits and controls, enhanced security measures, and entertainment 

controls. 

(4) Entrance criteria for the special event which may include but are not limited 

to prohibiting persons from entering with weapons, alcoholic beverages, 

pets, skates, bicycles, and other items which may be dangerous, disruptive, 

or inconvenient in crowded conditions, and prohibiting entry by persons 

appearing to be intoxicated. 

(5) Such other information as the City Clerk may from time to time deem 

necessary in order to enforce this Ordinance. 

 

13. Duties of Permittee. A permittee hereunder shall comply with all permit directions 

and conditions and with all applicable laws and ordinances. The special event 

chairman or other person heading or leading such activity shall carry the special  

130



   
ORDINANCE 2012-61              REGULATING ALCOHOL IN PUBLIC PLACES           PAGE   6 

 

event permit upon his person during the conduct of the special event.  

 

14. Public Conduct During Special Events.  

(a) Interference. No person shall unreasonably hamper, obstruct, impede or 

interfere with any special event assembly or with any person attending a 

special event or their property.  

(b) Parking at site of special event. The Police Chief and designated officers 

shall have the authority, when reasonably necessary, to prohibit or restrict 

the parking of vehicles along a highway or part thereof constituting a part 

of the location of a special event.  When necessary, the Police Chief shall 

cause signs to be posted to such effect, and it shall be unlawful for any 

person to park or leave unattended any vehicle in violation thereof. 

(c) One drink on-street limit. No person shall consume or possess in an open 

container more than one alcoholic beverage at any time at a permitted 

special event. 

(d) Size limited to 16 ounces. No alcoholic beverage served at any special event 

shall exceed 16 fluid ounces in size. No person attending the special event 

within the permitted public place shall consume or hold in possession any 

open alcoholic beverage container which exceeds 16 fluid ounces in size. 

(e) Drinking from bottle or glass prohibited. It shall be unlawful for any person 

to drink or attempt to drink any alcoholic beverage from a bottle or glass or 

to possess in an open bottle, or glass any alcoholic beverage in any public 

place even during a permitted special event. 

(f) Drinking alcohol in parked motor vehicle prohibited. It shall be unlawful 

for any person to consume any alcoholic beverages while in the confines of 

a motor vehicle when the vehicle is parked on any city street, alley, way or 

parking lot. 

(g) Public Intoxication.  No person shall become so intoxicated at any special 

event through the consumption of alcoholic beverages as to disturb the 

peace and enjoyment of the event by other attendees or the peace and 

enjoyment of City residents and others within the City. 

 

15. Special Event Fees and Performance Obligations.  The City Clerk is authorized to 

establish and amend from time to time a schedule of use fees and performance 

bond obligations for special events governed by this Ordinance.  Any initial or 

amended schedule of fees shall be publically posted for ten calendar days before 

the fees and obligations are to take effect. Provided, however, neighborhood parties 

or block parties shall be exempt from any such special event use fees or 

performance bond obligations so long as no commercial activity is conducted, no 

admission fee is charged, and members of the general public are not allowed 

access. 

 

16. Fines. Any person violating the provisions of this Ordinance shall be guilty of an 

offense against the City of Daphne and for each such offense shall be fined not less 

than $25.00 and no more than $100.00. For any second or subsequent offense, said 

fine shall not be less than $50.00 and no more than $200.00. 

 

 

 

131



   

   

ORDINANCE 2012-61              REGULATING ALCOHOL IN PUBLIC PLACES           PAGE   7 
 

SECTION III: CONFLICT WITH OTHER ORDINANCES. 

 That any Ordinance heretofore adopted by the City Council of Daphne, Alabama, 

which is in conflict with this Ordinance, be and is hereby replaced to the extent of such 

conflict. 

 

SECTION IV: SEVERABILITY. 

 That the provisions of this Ordinance are severable. If any section, subsection 

sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this ordinance is for any reason held invalid or 

unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a 

separate, distinct and independent provision and such holding shall not affect the validity 

of the remaining portions hereof. 

 

SECTION V: EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 That this Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the date of its 

approval by the City Council of the City of Daphne and publication as required by law. 

 

 APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS______DAY OF _______________, 2012. 

 

 

___________________________________ 

CITY COUNCIL PRESIDENT 

 

___________________________________ 

BAILEY YELDING, JR., 

MAYOR 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

___________________________________ 

DAVID COHEN 

CITY CLERK, MMC 

 

PAGE 2 OF 2 

132



CITY OF DAPHNE 

ORDINANCE NO. 2012-62 

 

 

AN ORDINANCE REGULATING THE PERSONAL USE OF SOCIAL MEDIA 

BY EMPLOYEES OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE BY IMPLEMENTING  

AND CREATING A SOCIAL MEDIA PERSONNEL POLICY 

 FOR CITY OF DAPHNE EMPLOYEES 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Daphne recognizes that many employees utilize  social 

media such as personal websites, web logs (blogs), wikis, social networks (e.g., 

Facebook®, MySpace®, LinkedIn®, etc.), online forums, and virtual worlds, as 

communication tools; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Daphne respects the rights of employees to use these 

media during their personal time away from work on their own personal computer 

devices; and  

 

WHEREAS, the City of Daphne takes no position on employees’ decisions to 

participate in social media activity; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne, after due consideration, 

believes that social media activity  by employees should be regulated and appropriate 

guidelines should be created in accordance with existing City of Daphne personnel 

policies;   

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA AS FOLLOWS:  

 

SECTION I: ADDITION TO EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK CHAPTER ONE 

 

That the following new section be added to Chapter One of the Employee Handbook: 

 

1.9. SOCIAL MEDIA POLICY 

Definitions.  “Social media activity” includes, includes all types of postings on the 

Internet, including but not limited to, postings on social networking sites, (such as 

Facebook, MySpace or LinkedIn); blogs and other on-line journals and diaries; bulletin 

boards and chat rooms; microblogging, such as Twitter®; and postings of video or audio 

on media-sharing sites, such as YouTube®.  “Social media activity” also includes 

permitting, or failing to remove, posts by others where the employee can control the 

content of postings, such as on a personal page or blog. 

 

Application.  Employees who engage in social media activity should be aware that their 

postings, even if done off premises and while off duty, could have an adverse effect on 

the City’s  interests. To reduce that risk, the city has adopted this Policy which is  

133



ORDINANCE 2012-62                                   SOCIAL MEDIA                              PAGE   2 

 

applicable to all City employees and to all social media activity of such employees even 

if the activity is done off duty, while using personal electronic resources, and whether or 

not the employee posts anonymously or using a pseudonym.  Employees who are 

expressly authorized to engage in social media activity on the City’s behalf are required 

to comply with separate guidelines.  In the event an area is not covered specifically by 

this policy, the City relies on the professionalism and judgment of its employees to 

ensure that social media activity is used appropriately. 

 

Guidelines and Prohibitions. All social media activity will be subject to all City policies, 

rules, regulations, and guidelines.  In addition, the City adopts these specific guidelines 

and prohibitions: 

 

 The City prohibits employees from engaging in social media activity while on duty 

during working time, which excludes meal breaks or other break periods when 

employees are not expected to be working. 

 

 The City prohibits employees from engaging in social media activity utilizing any of 

the City’s electronic resources, unless specifically authorized in writing by the City. 

 

 The City prohibits employees from texting or other social media activity while 

driving on City business or while driving any City vehicle, whether the employee is 

on duty or off duty. 

 

 Supervisory employees must not gain access to the restricted social media page of a 

subordinate (for example, by sending or accepting a “friend” request) unless there is a 

valid City business purpose for doing so.  Any such access to a subordinate’s 

restricted social media page should be limited to that which is necessary to 

accomplish the City’s business purpose. Any employee may reject, without fear of 

retaliation, any request from any other employee, or manager, or supervisor that, if 

accepted, would permit access to a restricted social media page (such as a “friend” or 

“like” or connection request). 

 

 Employees are prohibited from acting as or purporting to act as a spokesperson on 

behalf of the City or posting comments as a representative of or purporting to be a 

representative of the City without express written authorization.  Employees must 

make clear to their readers that the views expressed in any posting are their views 

alone and do not reflect the views of the City. 

 

 Employees are prohibited from disclosing information of the City that is confidential 

and/or proprietary when engaging in social media activity. 

 

 Employees are prohibited from posting images or videos of other employees/co-

workers taken or made while the employee/co-worker is working or otherwise in their 

employment capacity. 

 

134



ORDINANCE 2012-62                                   SOCIAL MEDIA                              PAGE   3 

 

 

 Employees are prohibited from posting any nonpublic, confidential, and/or 

proprietary images of any City premises and property.  

 

 While engaged in social media activity, employees are prohibited from displaying the 

City of Daphne logo or letterhead or using materials belonging to the City, including 

promotional and marketing materials, without express written permission or 

authorization. 

 

 Employees are prohibited from using use a City-issued email address to register for 

any social media account or site, or as an identifier needed to participate in any social 

media activity, or otherwise while engaging in social media activity for non-business 

purposes; provided, however, employees may reference the City as their employer 

and include contact information (including City-issued email addresses) on social and 

professional networking sites only, such as LinkedIn. 

 

Enforcement.  The City may view and monitor any employee’s publicly-accessible 

website, web blog, or other social media forum for which the employee is responsible at 

any time.  The City will, in its discretion, review social media activity to the fullest extent 

permitted by applicable law.  If an employee engages in social media activity in violation 

of this Policy anonymously or using a pseudonym, the City will, in appropriate 

circumstances, take steps to determine the employee’s identity.  Employees will be held 

accountable for engaging in social media activity that violates this Policy.  Failure to 

comply with this Policy may result in disciplinary action up to and including, termination 

of employment.  The City also reserves the right to report suspected unlawful conduct to 

appropriate law enforcement authorities and take any other available legal remedy. 

 

SECTION II: CONFLICT WITH OTHER ORDINANCES.  

 

 That any Ordinance heretofore adopted by the City Council of Daphne, Alabama, 

which is in conflict with this Ordinance, be and is hereby replaced to the extent of such 

conflict.  

 

SECTION III: SEVERABILITY.  

 

 The provisions of this Ordinance are severable. If any section, subsection 

sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or 

unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a 

separate, distinct and independent provision and such holding shall not affect the validity 

of the remaining portions hereof.  

 

SECTION IV: EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 

 This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the date of its 

approval by the City Council of the City of Daphne and publication as required by law.  

135



ORDINANCE 2012-62                                   SOCIAL MEDIA                              PAGE   4 

  

 

 ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS ___ DAY OF ________, 2012.  

 

 

      

 

       ______________________________ 

       COUNCIL PRESIDENT 
        

 

 

       ______________________________  

       BAILEY YELDING, JR., 

       MAYOR  

        

 

ATTEST:  

 

 

_____________________________ 

DAVID COHEN,  

CITY CLERK, MMC  

 

 

 

 

136


	Agenda
	City Roll Call
	Council Minutes - Ocotber 1 - FINAL
	Reporting of Standing Committees
	Finance Minutes
	Backup to Finance Minutes
	Ordinance Committee Meeting October 10 Minutes
	Public Works Minutes - September 17 2012
	Special Reports
	BZA Minutes
	Planning Commission Minutes
	Public Hearing - Set Date Info - 11-19-12
	Mayors Report
	Parade Permit - Out of Darkness
	City Attorneys and Department Head Report
	RESOLUTION - ORDINANCES - DIVIDER PAGE
	2012-76 - RES - Vac of Easement - Allstun
	Backup to 2012-76 - RES
	2012-77 -  RES - ACCEPTING LAKEVIEW PROPERTY
	2012-78 - RES - PPDTrav
	2012-79 - RES - Fiber Installation -Service
	Cathy S. Barnette,
	Council President
	Bailey Yelding, Jr.,
	Mayor
	ATTEST:
	David L. Cohen,
	City Clerk MMC

	2012-80 - RES - Lake Forrest Rd Imprvmnts Phase II-2012
	Cathy S. Barnette,
	Council President
	Bailey Yelding, Jr.,
	Mayor
	ATTEST:
	David L. Cohen,
	City Clerk,  MMC

	2012-81 - RES - Investment of Funds 2012 Construction Fund
	2012-82 - -RES - GOVDEALS COM
	Cathy S. Barnette, Council President
	Bailey Yelding, Jr., Mayor
	ATTEST:
	David L. Cohen, City Clerk , MMC

	2012-59 - ORD - Wireless Service- Internal City Network -Fiber- CC-Rec
	2012-60 - ORD - PD Vehicle Replacements-FY13
	2012-61 - ORD - Alcohol in public spaces (10-11-12) (2) (2)
	2012-62 - ORD - Social Media Policy (10-3-12) (includes all revisions to date)



